BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING'S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY PANEL

Minutes from the Meeting of the Environment and Community Panel held on Wednesday, 15th March, 2017 at 6.00 pm in the Committee Suite, King's Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn

PRESENT: Councillors C Sampson (Chairman)
Miss L Bambridge, A Bubb, Mrs S Fraser, G Hipperson, G McGuinness
(substitute for Mrs S Collop), J Moriarty, D Pope (substitute for Mrs C Bower),
T Smith, Mrs S Squire, A Tyler and Mrs J Westrop

Portfolio Holders

Councillor R Blunt - Portfolio Holder for Development
Councillor I Devereux - Portfolio Holder for Environment
Councillor B Long - Leader of the Council
Councillor Mrs E Nockolds — Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health

Officers:

Lorraine Gore – Executive Director Ray Harding – Chief Executive Honor Howell – Assistant Director Robert Street – Group Accountant

EC81: APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs C Bower and Mrs S Collop.

EC82: MINUTES

RESOLVED: The Minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

EC83: **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST**

There were no declarations of interest.

EC84: URGENT BUSINESS

There was none.

EC85: MEMBERS PRESENT PURSUANT TO STANDING ORDER 34

There was none.

EC86: CHAIRMAN'S CORRESPONDENCE

There was none.

EC87: COUNCIL LOTTERY PROPOSALS

The Group Accountant provided the Panel with information on how a local lottery scheme could operate in West Norfolk. A copy of his presentation is attached. He provided detail on how the scheme could work and that it could cost £1 a ticket and people could enter online. The £1 ticket price would be distributed as set out in the report. 50% of the ticket price would go to a good cause and 10% to a general fund. Good causes would need to apply to join the scheme and the Council would be required to determine the criteria that they would need to meet to be eligible.

The Group Accountant drew attention to the report which set out the costs to set up the lottery and how it would be managed. He explained that it would take approximately six months' to set up.

The Panel's attention was drawn to the recommendations as set out in the report.

The Chairman thanked the Group Accountant and the Executive Director for the information and invited questions and comments from the Panel, as summarised below.

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Long informed the Panel that he had brought the proposals forward, following conversations with other Local Authorities. He reminded those present that finances were constrained and in the future it may be harder to support good causes through the Council's finances. He felt that the local lottery proposals would counteract the reductions in the Council's ability to help. He informed those present that King's Lynn previously had a local lottery, but this had ended when the National Lottery was introduced. He explained that not all small organisations would be able to get National Lottery funding as it was a very complex process. A local lottery could make funding easier to access for smaller organisations. The Leader of the Council accepted that some people did not agree with gambling, and if they wanted to support a local charity or organisation they could do so independently.

The Leader of the Council stated that he had met with lots of charities and local organisations and many of them would be in favour of the additional funding that the local lottery could potentially provide. He informed the Panel that the proposals for the local lottery scheme would be presented to Cabinet for consideration.

In response to a question from Councillor Pope, the Group Accountant agreed to check how many big winners there had been in other Local

Authority areas. Councillor Pope commented that the scheme would be good if local organisations would benefit and they could promote the lottery and invite people to support their charity or organisation. It was confirmed that the Council would determine the criteria for which organisations and charities would be eligible.

Councillor Smith asked for clarification on the breakeven cost and what safeguards would be in place to protect children. The Group Accountant explained that there would be a cost to the Council to set up the website and then the ticket price would go towards the prize fund, the charities and ongoing costs. The Council would also be required to obtain the necessary licences to operate. He explained that the lottery would be accessed online and a credit or debit card would be required.

Councillor Squire informed those present that she had spoken to colleagues in Portsmouth, which had a local lottery scheme. She had received positive feedback and explained that the individual charities promoted the lottery. She felt that the scheme was a good way for individuals to support their chosen charity and was better than using council tax payer's money for financial assistance schemes.

Councillor Westrop suggested that investigations take place on other service providers of local lottery schemes as she was aware of a local lottery scheme where 80% of the ticket price went to charity. She also hoped that the local lottery scheme would not preclude smaller organisations that did not have the time or capacity to promote the scheme. The Group Accountant explained that organisations could just submit a photo and paragraph of text to include on the website. Councillor Westrop referred to paragraph 3.3 of the report and asked that local branches of national organisations and charities be eligible to apply.

In response to a question from Councillor Moriarty, the Group Accountant explained that the Council could purchase a template website from the lottery management company. It was explained that discussions had taken place with some of the other Local Authorities who ran local lotteries and their feedback on the company used had been positive. At this stage information had not been sought on the Directors of the Company or their track record, but due diligence would be carried out at the required time. The Executive Director explained that the proposals had been brought to the Panel at an early stage to seek their views on the scheme before the detailed background work was carried out. If the Panel were broadly supportive of the idea, more information could be presented in the future for consideration.

In response to a question from the Vice Chairman, it was confirmed that the lottery was web based and there was no limit on the amount of charities which could join the scheme and benefit from the additional funding, as long as they met the criteria.

Councillor Fraser supported the proposals, but asked the Council to be mindful of the other local charities who already ran local lottery schemes.

Councillor Tyler commented that he was in favour of the principle of the scheme and he felt that there would be interest from local organisations and charities. He hoped that the lottery would be made accessible and commented that not all people had internet access and would there be other ways to enter such as in shops or scratch cards. The Executive Director explained that there would be administration costs involved to access the lottery in other ways, and this could be investigated by the Lottery Manager once appointed.

Councillor Moriarty referred to the recommendations as set out within the report and commented that these needed to be looked at. He felt that the principle was fine, but more information would need to be brought back to the Panel on the detail.

The Chief Executive explained that the purpose of the report was to get Councillors views on the principle of the scheme. If Members were broadly acceptable of the proposals, due diligence would be carried out and further information presented to the Panel in the future.

Councillor McGuinness commented that market testing would be required and investigations into other service providers to ensure that the Council and the charities involved would get the best deal possible. Councillor McGuinness raised concern that he did not want the scheme to replace the financial assistance scheme.

The Leader of the Council explained that it was not the intention to end the financial assistance scheme, however, consideration needed to be given to diminishing budgets. He explained that the lottery provided an additional opportunity for local organisations and charities to fundraise.

Councillor Bubb asked for information on how much it would cost for the Council to administer the lottery themselves. The Group Accountant explained that he was aware of another Local Authority who had set up a lottery independently and it had cost over £80,000.

In response to a question regarding insurance backing and the prize fund, it was confirmed that 20% of the ticket price went to the prize fund and if prizes were not won, they would build up in the prize fund. The Insurance Premium was included in the 17% which went to the Management Company.

The Panel discussed the criteria for the charities and it was suggested that this be brought back to the Panel at a future meeting for further consideration. Councillor Westrop explained that consideration would need to be given to the type of charities which would be eligible as their governance was all different.

RESOLVED: That the Environment and Community Panel request that Cabinet:

- 1. Consider in principle that a Local Lottery be set up, with further information to be provided to the Environment and Community Panel as appropriate.
- 2. Investigate options for the setting up and management of the scheme
- 3. Further information on the criteria to be presented to the Panel for consideration.

EC88: UPDATE FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES

Representatives from the Outside Bodies were invited to present their report and respond to questions as set out below:

EC89: COLLEGE/COUNCIL LIAISON BOARD

Councillor Smith explained that the College/Council Liaison Board would be holding their next meeting next week. He therefore asked if he could defer his update to a future meeting.

RESOLVED: That the update be added to the agenda for the next meeting.

EC90: KING'S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK AREA MUSEUMS COMMITTEE

Councillor Tyler explained that he felt the meetings were really useful and usually consisted of the following:

- Scrutinising Proposals
- Reports from the Museums
- Staff concerns
- Attendance figures
- Opening hours and charges

The Panel was informed that people could now purchase joint tickets which were valid for the Customs House, Stories of Lynn and Lynn Museum.

The Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health, Councillor Mrs Nockolds informed those present that the Area Museums Committee had originally been established to scrutinise the Service Level Agreement with Norfolk Museums Service. She explained that the Committee received various reports and updates from museums around the Borough and received an annual report on Tourism. She felt that the Partnership arrangements worked really well and the Norfolk Museums Service worked with all Local Authorities in Norfolk.

The Vice Chairman, Councillor Bambridge commented that she was pleased to see that Lynn Museum and Stories of Lynn were currently opening on a Sunday. The Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health explained that this was because of the Heritage Lottery Fund Activity Plan.

EC91: NORFOLK COUNTYWIDE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP SCRUTINY SUB PANEL

Councillor Mrs Westrop provided the update. She explained that the Panel were carrying out interesting work as set out in her report. She explained that they were focussing on Prevent and the County Lines Strategy.

Councillor Mrs Westrop suggested that it would be beneficial for Members to receive a briefing on Prevent and she requested that this be added to the Panel's Work Programme.

EC92: NORFOLK HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Members attention was drawn to the report as included in the agenda. Councillor Smith, who was the substitute Member on the Committee informed the Panel that he would attend a future meeting with Councillor Young.

Councillor McGuinness asked if the Committee had been involved in the Sustainability Transformation Plan. The Chief Executive informed the Panel that he had a structure chart of all the bodies involved in the Sustainability Transformation Plan and agreed to circulate this to the Panel.

The Panel was reminded that they would continue to be kept up to date and representatives from the Clinical Commissioning Group would be coming back to the Panel on 24th May 2017 to provide a further update. It was suggested that a pre-council briefing be arranged so that all Members could be updated.

EC93: WEST NORFOLK COMMUNITY TRANSPORT PROJECT

Councillor Fraser presented her report. She explained that a new General Manager would be in post shortly. West Norfolk Community Transport had recently changed their branding and vehicle livery and Councillor Fraser felt that this had been an improvement and appeared more user friendly.

The Portfolio Holder for Culture, Heritage and Health explained that dial-a-bus and West Norfolk Community Transport had a very good reputation and was available for people who could not use public

transport. She explained that West Norfolk Community Transport had their own bus stop outside St James Multi Storey Car Park which made access to Shop Mobility easy.

EC94: WEST NORFOLK DISABILITY FORUM

Councillor Bubb presented his report. He explained that he was frustrated as he felt that the suggestions of the Forum were often not acted upon. He felt that the future operation of the Forum needed to be investigated.

The Chairman, Councillor Sampson informed the Panel that suggestions made by the Forum regarding the Railway Station had been acted upon.

Members discussed the operation of the West Norfolk Disability Forum and suggestions on how it could operate in the future. It was suggested that an Informal Working Group be established to look at the future of the Forum.

RESOLVED: (i) That an Informal Working Group be established to review the operation of the West Norfolk Disability Forum.

(ii) The following Members to sit on the Working Group:

Councillor Bubb Councillor Fraser Councillor Squire Councillor Westrop

(iii) That the Informal Working Group report back to the Environment and Community Panel at their meeting on 4th July 2017

EC95: ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2016-2017 & 2017-2018

Members of the Panel were reminded that an eform was available on the intranet which could be completed and submitted if Members had items which they would like to be considered for addition to the Work Programme.

RESOLVED: The Work Programme was noted.

EC96: **DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING**

The next meeting of the Environment and Community Panel would be held on **Wednesday 26th April 2017 at 6.00pm** in the Education Room, Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King's Lynn.

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm